

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. What is the background on the fee payment? 6

1.A. Legislative History 6

1.B. General provisions of the SEVIS rule..... 7

2. What is the purpose of the SEVIS I-901 fee? 7

2.A. What is the primary purpose of the SEVIS I-901 fee? 7

2.B. What is the difference between a SEVIS I-901 fee and a school SEVIS administration fee? 8

2.C. How do I know if the school/exchange visitor program paid my SEVIS I-901 fee? 8

2.D. Does the SEVIS I-901 fee replace the visa fee? 9

3. Who pays – or does not pay – the SEVIS I-901 fee and when is it paid? 9

3.A. Do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee? 9

3.B. Who Does Not Pay the Fee 12

3.B.1. In general, who does not pay the fee? 12

3.B.2. If I am a student or exchange visitor who started school or a program before October 27, 2008, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 13

3.B.3. Do I have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if I already paid it and my visa was denied?... 13

3.B.4. If I am a government visitor, do I need to pay the fee? 13

3.B.5. When is paying a SEVIS I-901 fee not required for continuing students?..... 14

3.B.6. When is paying a SEVIS I-901 fee not required for continuing exchange visitors? 15

3.B.7. Which exchange visitors do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 15

3.B.8. Can the fee be waived in accordance with 8 CFR 103.7(c)? 16

3.C. How much is the SEVIS I-901 fee? 16

3.D. How does the SEVIS I-901 fee payment process impact getting a visa? 16

3.E. How do I apply to become a student (F or M)? 16

3.F. How do I apply to become an exchange visitor (J)? 17

3.G. How do I know if I need a visa? 17

3.H. When to Pay the Fee 17

3.H.1. When do prospective students or exchange visitors pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 17

3.H.2. When must continuing exchange visitors (J-1 nonimmigrants who have begun, but not finished a program) pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 18

3.H.3. When must continuing students (F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3 nonimmigrants that have begun, but not finished, a program) pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 18

3.H.4. Do I need to pay the fee before I receive a Form I-20 or DS-2019? 18

3.H.5. Do I pay the fee for every Form I-20 or DS-2019 I receive? 19

3.I. More General Questions on Who Pays the Fee 19

3.I.1. Do I need to pay the fee if I am already enrolled as a F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1? 19

3.I.2. Do I have to pay the fee every time I apply for a student or exchange visitor visa? ... 19

3.I.3. Do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if I need a new visa to return to the United States to continue my studies or participate in an exchange visitor program? 20

3.I.4. Do spouses and minor children of students and exchange visitors pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 20

3.I.5. Which students or exchange visitors are visa exempt and can apply for F-1, F-3, J-1, M-1 or M-3 status at the POE? 20

3.J. Specific Questions About F and M Students and SEVIS I-901 Fee Payment 20

3.J.1. If I am a student who is reentering with an existing visa, but a new I-20 for initial attendance, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 20

3.J.2. If I am a student applying for a new visa with an initial Form I-20 but I have been out of the United States for less than five months, do I need to pay the fee? 21

3.J.3. If I am a student who has changed educational levels and am returning home to renew an expired visa, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee? 21

3.J.4. I am a commuter student and I receive an initial Form I-20 every semester, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee every semester? 21

3.K. Specific Questions about J Exchange Visitors and SEVIS I-901 Fee Payment 22

3.K.1.	I applied for several exchange visitor programs. I did not have a final answer from my preferred program in time to enter before the start of my preferred program. So I entered the United States in another program and was subsequently accepted by my preferred program. Do I have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee when I apply to DoS to change programs?	22
3.K.2.	If I am an exchange visitor who is reentering with a valid J-1 visa but with an initial DS-2019 form (non-transfer), do I need to pay the fee?.....	22
3.K.3.	If I participated as an exchange visitor short-term scholar and will be returning to the same exchange visitor program for another short-term stay, do I have to pay the fee again?	22
3.K.4.	If I participated in a short-term program and then decide to participate in another short-term program, do I have to pay the fee again?	22
3.K.5.	What if I plan to participate in more than one exchange visitor program while in the United States?	22
3.L.	What happens if I should pay the fee and I did not?	23
3.M.	What happens if my Form I-20 or DS-2019 was issued before October 27, 2008, but was corrected and reissued after October 27, 2008. Do I have to pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee?....	23
4.	How is the SEVIS I-901 fee paid and the Form I-901 filed?	24
4.A.	Can you give me a general overview of the SEVIS I-901 fee payment process?	24
4.A.1.	What are the options for fee payment?	25
4.A.2.	Can you give me a checklist to help ensure I complete my Form I-901 and pay properly?	25
4.A.3.	How do applicants in the United States file the Form I-901 and pay the fee?	27
4.B.	What if my school or exchange visitor program collects a SEVIS I-901 fee?	27
4.C.	Form I-901 questions.....	28
4.C.1.	What is the purpose of the Form I-901?	28
4.C.2.	Where can I get a copy of the Form I-901?	28
4.C.3.	What documents do I need to fill in my Form I-901?	28
4.C.4.	What if I have more than one Form I-20 or DS-2019?	28
4.C.5.	What do I do if I have changed my mind about which school or program I will attend after paying the SEVIS I-901 fee?	28
4.C.6.	How do I find the SEVIS ID number on my Form I-20 or DS-2019?	29
4.C.7.	How do I find the date of issuance on my Form I-20 or DS-2019?	29
4.D.	Questions about payments.....	29
4.D.1.	What is a payment coupon?	29
4.D.2.	What are the requirements for paying by check or money order?	29
4.D.3.	How do I pay by check?.....	29
4.D.4.	Can I pay online with a check using ACH (Automated Clearing House)?.....	30
4.D.5.	Can I pay with traveler's check?.....	30
4.D.6.	Can I use a third party check for payment?	30
4.D.7.	Can I send the Form I-901 and payment by courier?	30
4.D.8.	What credit and debit cards are accepted?	30
4.D.9.	How do I pay by credit or debit card?	30
4.D.10.	Can I pay with a debit card?	31
4.D.11.	Can I pay with a credit or debit card when I mail in a payment?	31
4.D.12.	What would cause my mailed payment to be rejected and returned?.....	31
4.D.13.	What if SEVP says that my payment was returned, but I do not receive it?	31
4.D.14.	Can I pay with cash?	31
4.D.15.	What currency can be used to pay SEVIS I-901 fee?	32
4.D.16.	How can I pay if I do not have access to a computer or credit or debit card?.....	32
4.D.17.	Can someone else pay for me?.....	32
4.D.18.	How do I do make a third party payment if I am paying the SEVIS I-901 fee on the behalf of a student or exchange visitor?	32
4.E.	What are the options and processes for paying and filing for more than one person?.....	33
4.F.	Bulk Filer 33	

4.F.1.	What is a bulk filer?.....	33
4.F.2.	What organizations can apply for the bulk filing program?.....	33
4.F.3.	How does my organization express an interest in bulk filing?.....	34
4.F.4.	Do bulk filers have to pay the fee for all applicants?	34
4.F.5.	If a bulk filer pays a fee for an applicant and the person participates in a different program, can the bulk filer receive a refund?	34
4.G.	Privacy and accessibility questions	34
4.G.1.	How is the privacy of my credit or debit card payment information protected?	34
4.G.2.	Is the information that I submit shared with advertisers?	34
4.G.3.	Why does the Form I-901 request my phone number? What if I don't include it?	34
4.G.4.	Is the I-901 website accessible to people with disabilities?.....	34
4.G.5.	With this new SEVIS I-901 fee, there may be scam artists who set up web sites claiming to be authentic. How do I know I am on the right web site and paying the right person?	35
4.H.	Technical problems while paying on the Internet.....	35
4.H.1.	Can I fill in the Form I-901 online and pay by check if I do not have a printer?	35
4.H.2.	What can I do if I try to get to the SEVP I-901 site and I receive "Page Cannot Be Displayed" error?	35
4.H.3.	Why does the I-901 website page begin to appear and then stop halfway through?..	36
4.H.4.	The browser indicates that I do not have strong enough browser security to view the page. How can I pay the I-901 fee online?	36
4.H.5.	When I type my information into the I-901 form and click Submit, the browser hangs and does not return another screen. Has my information been submitted?.....	36
4.H.6.	I clicked Submit on the screen but ended up on a page showing I-901 Instructions. What happened?.....	36
4.H.7.	What browser do I need to access the website? What if my browser is not the right version?	36
4.I.	What are some tips for fee payment?	37
4.I.1.	How do I avoid problems paying the fee?	37
4.I.2.	What is the fastest way to pay the fee?	37
4.J.	What if I have a problem with making a payment?	37
4.J.1.	What if I complete the online Form I-901 and then do not select a payment method?37	
4.J.2.	What if I realize I made a mistake on my Form I-901 after I filed it on the web or mailed it to SEVP?	37
4.J.3.	What if I pay too much?	39
4.J.4.	What if I pay too little?	39
4.K.	What if my school/sponsor pays for me and I want to change schools/programs?	39
4.L.	Are more payment options being considered?.....	39
5.	Receipt and payment verification related questions	40
5.A.	Why do I need a receipt?	40
5.B.	What do I need to take to the embassy or consulate to prove I paid my SEVIS I-901 fee?	40
5.C.	When do I need a receipt?	40
5.D.	How long will it take for me to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee and get a receipt?.....	41
5.D.1.	How do I ensure the payment is made in time for me to go to the visa interview at the consulate?.....	42
5.D.2.	Does the time from payment to receipt vary according to how the payment is made?42	
5.D.3.	What is the fastest way to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?	42
5.D.4.	Does it take longer to get a receipt if I pay by check instead of by credit or debit card?43	
5.D.5.	How long does expedited delivery take?	43
5.D.6.	Is expedited delivery available to all countries?	43
5.E.	What if I need another copy of my receipt?.....	43
5.E.1.	Can a reprinted receipt be sent to a different address than the original receipt?.....	43
5.E.2.	Can I reprint my electronic receipt?	43
5.E.3.	Will I get a receipt if my exchange visitor program sponsor pays for me?	44
5.E.4.	Is there a charge for sending a copy of my receipt?.....	44

5.E.5.	If I request a copy of my receipt, how soon will I receive it?	44
5.E.6.	Can receipts be e-mailed or faxed?	44
5.F.	What do I do if I do not get my receipt?.....	44
5.G.	What happens if my receipt does not arrive and I need it for my visa interview or to enter the United States?	44
5.G.1.	When can I go to the consulate?	44
5.G.2.	When can I file my application for change of status?	45
5.G.3.	When can I file my reinstatement?	45
5.H.	If I have presented the SEVIS I-901 fee receipt when I apply for my visa, do I need to present the receipt at the POE?	45
5.I.	Payment/Receipt Problems.....	45
5.I.1.	What happens if my check does not clear the bank?	45
5.I.2.	What do I do if my payment and Form I-901 are returned to me?	46
5.J.	Retaining the Receipt	46
5.J.1.	Will I need my SEVIS I-901 fee receipt after I have my visa?	46
5.J.2.	How long should I keep my SEVIS I-901 fee receipt?.....	46
5.J.3.	Will the consulate keep my original receipt?	46
6.	How are refunds requested and processed?	46
6.A.	Who is eligible for a refund?	46
6.B.	Who can request a refund?	47
6.C.	How do I request a refund?	47
6.D.	Can I get a refund if I paid twice?.....	48
6.E.	Can I get a refund if I paid by mistake?.....	48
6.F.	Can I get a refund if I changed my mind?	48
6.G.	What if two schools or sponsors pay for me? Can I get one fee refunded?	48
6.H.	Where are refunds sent?.....	48
6.I.	If my institution paid the SEVIS I-901 fee for a student or exchange visitor who decides not to come or who enrolls in a different school or program, can my institution request a refund?.....	48
7.	How can SEVIS I-901 fee paid on one SEVIS ID be moved to another SEVIS ID?	49
7.A.	What are the basic rules for applying a SEVIS I-901 fee payment from one SEVIS ID number to another?	49
7.B.	What do I do if I paid on one SEVIS ID number and now want to go to a different school or participate in a different exchange visitor program?	49
7.C.	An exchange visitor program or other third party paid my SEVIS I-901 fee and now I want to participate in a different program? Can I transfer my SEVIS I-901 fee?.....	49
7.D.	How do I ask SEVP to transfer the SEVIS I-901 fee payment information from one SEVIS ID number to another?	50
8.	How do I get help with SEVIS I-901 fee issues?	50
8.A.	Where can I get help if I am having a problem with the SEVIS I-901 fee payment process?.....	50
8.B.	Can I get help with a specific payment problem?.....	51
8.C.	Is help available in languages other than English?	51
8.D.	What if I need help with the initial SEVIS I-901 fee payment and filing process?.....	51
8.E.	What if I need help with verifying the status of my SEVIS I-901 fee payment?	51
8.F.	What if I need help determining if I am required to pay the fee?	52
9.	How are fee payment problems resolved?	52
9.A.	What if I cannot make a full payment?	52
9.B.	How will I know if my payment or Form I-901 is not accepted?	52
9.C.	What if my payment or Form I-901 was returned, should I repay?	52
9.D.	What is the mechanism for resolving problem cases?.....	52
9.E.	What if I paid the SEVIS I-901 fee but SEVP does not have a record of the payment?.....	52
9.F.	What if I paid a \$35 fee and now I want to participate in a program that costs \$180?	53
9.G.	How do I clear my debt if my check bounces or is rejected by my bank?.....	53
9.H.	What does a student or exchange visitor do if SEVIS shows that their payment status is <i>Cancelled</i> ?.....	53

10. Glossary of Terms..... 54
Screens Shot from the FMJFee Website 57
 10.A. Payment Coupon..... 57

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SEVIS I-901 FEE

1. WHAT IS THE BACKGROUND ON THE FEE PAYMENT?

1.A. Legislative History

Section 641 of the [Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 \(IIRIRA\)](#), Public Law No. 104–208, 110 Stat. 3546 (September 30, 1996), codified at 8 USC 1372, (as amended) required the creation of a program to collect information relating to nonimmigrant foreign students and exchange visitor program participants during the course of their stay in the United States. The program became known as SEVP (Student and Exchange Visitor Program) and its core technology became known as SEVIS (Student and Exchange Visitor Information System).

A number of rules outline the requirements and procedures for SEVIS. They are:

- [67 FR 34862](#) (May 16, 2002, proposed rule for implementing SEVIS)
- [67 FR 44343](#) (July 1, 2002, interim rule for schools to apply for preliminary enrollment in SEVIS)
- [67 FR 60107](#) (September 25, 2002, interim rule for certification of schools applying for enrollment in SEVIS)
- [67 FR 76256](#) (December 11, 2002, final DHS rule implementing SEVIS)
- [67 FR 76307](#) (December 12, 2002, DoS interim final rule implementing SEVIS)
- [69 FR 39814](#) (July 1, 2004, Authorizing Collection of the Fee Levied on F, J and M Nonimmigrant Classifications Under Public Law 104– 208)
- 73 FR 55683 (September 26, 2008, Adjusting Program Fees and Establishing Procedures for Out-of-Cycle Review and Recertification of Schools Certified by the Student and Exchange Visitor Program To Enroll F and/or M Nonimmigrant Students)

Section 442(a)(4) of the [Homeland Security Act](#), as amended, specifically transferred responsibility for SEVIS to ICE.

Section 641(e) of IIRIRA, as amended, requires that a fee be established and charged to students or exchange visitors tracked in SEVIS to fund the program and further requires that the fee be used only for SEVP related purposes. SEVIS I-901 fees will be deposited into a sub-account within the Immigration Examination Fee Account and maintained for SEVP use.

On October 26, 2003, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) published a proposed rule in the Federal Register, to implement section 641 of IIRIRA, requiring the collection of information relating to nonimmigrant foreign students and exchange visitors and providing for the collection of the required fee to defray the costs.

On July 1, 2004, a final rule was published to amend DHS regulations to provide for the collection of a fee to be paid by certain individuals who are seeking status as F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3 nonimmigrant students or as J-1 nonimmigrant exchange visitors.

On October 27, 2008, DHS amends its regulations to provide for the collection of a fee to be paid by certain individuals who are seeking status as F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3 nonimmigrant students or as J-1 nonimmigrant exchange visitors.

1.B. General provisions of the SEVIS rule

Generally, the rule levies a fee of \$200. Some applicants for certain J-1 exchange visitor programs will pay a fee of \$180, others a reduced fee of \$35 and certain other applicants will be exempt from the fee.

The final rule explains who will be required to pay the fee, describes the consequences that a person seeking F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 nonimmigrant status faces upon failure to pay the fee and specifies who is exempt from the fee.

The purpose of the fee is to cover the costs of developing and deploying the next generation of administering and maintaining SEVIS, which includes ensuring compliance with the system's requirements by individuals, schools and exchange visitor program sponsors.

Effective October 27, 2008, potential nonimmigrants who are initially issued a Form I-20 or Form DS-2019 on or after that date will pay the higher fee.

Potential nonimmigrants, for purposes of the SEVIS Fee rule, are:

- Those who apply to the Department of State (DoS) or DHS for initial attendance as an F, M or J nonimmigrant
- Nonimmigrants in the United States that apply for a change of status to an F, M or J classification
- Current J-1 nonimmigrants that apply for a J-1 category change on or after October 27, 2008

If a Form I-20 or Form DS-2019 for initial status in a new program is issued on or after October 27, 2008, the nonimmigrant traveling on that document will be required to pay the fee. This does not include F-1 students who are transferring or changing level to attend a new program while maintaining F status. See the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#), for who needs to pay the fee.

2. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE SEVIS I-901 FEE?

2.A. What is the primary purpose of the SEVIS I-901 fee?

The SEVIS I-901 fee is mandated by Congress to support the program office and the automated system that keeps track of students and exchange visitors and ensures that they maintain their status while in the United States. Each

student or exchange visitor issued an initial Form I-20 or DS-2019 on or after October 27, 2008, is responsible for paying this fee to SEVP. There are some exceptions. For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)

The fee is used to:

- Maintain and update SEVIS
- Hire and train SEVIS Liaison Officers
- Staff and manage the SEVP Office to:
 - Support the current version of SEVIS and develop and deploy the next generation of SEVIS
 - Develop SEVP policies and procedures
 - Offer SEVIS-related training, assistance and problem resolution to the schools and exchange visitor program sponsors
- Maintain enforcement oversight to ensure that:
 - Schools are maintaining accurate, timely information
 - Students or exchange visitors who fail to maintain status either leave the United States or apply for reinstatement

2.B. What is the difference between a SEVIS I-901 fee and a school SEVIS administration fee?

Some schools charge a fee by the year or the semester to support their foreign student/exchange visitor office and automated systems. ***These fees are neither mandated nor collected by the U.S. government.***

If you paid a foreign student fee to your school and are not sure if it was the SEVIS I-901 fee paid to SEVP, contact an official at your school for clarification.

For more information see [What is the primary purpose of the SEVIS I-901 fee?](#)

2.C. How do I know if the school/exchange visitor program sponsor paid my SEVIS I-901 fee?

Schools and exchange visitor program sponsors have the option of paying the SEVIS I-901 fee for prospective students or exchange visitors, but are not required to pay the fee.

You must ask a DSO at your school or the Responsible Officer (RO) listed on your DS-2019 to find out if the SEVIS I-901 fee has been paid for you. If the fee is paid on your behalf, you should receive a receipt from whomever paid the SEVIS I-901 fee for you. See the [section on receipts](#) for how to verify payment has been made and how to order a copy of the receipt.

Some schools or exchange visitor program sponsors may charge an institutional fee that supports their costs for administering SEVIS. However, these fees are **not** paid to the SEVP. If your school or exchange visitor program charges a *SEVIS Fee*, check to see who is receiving the fee. When a school or exchange visitor program sponsor pays the fee to SEVP on your behalf, they

will send you a copy of the receipt. If the fee does not go to SEVP, you are still required to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.

2.D. Does the SEVIS I-901 fee replace the visa fee?

No. The visa fee is to defray the cost for machine-readable visas and to support the consulates. There is a separate non-refundable fee for anyone seeking a nonimmigrant visa for the United States.

The SEVIS I-901 fee is a separate fee paid to SEVP. This fee supports the Student and Exchange Visitor Program in DHS. See [What is the primary purpose of the SEVIS I-901 fee?](#)

3. WHO PAYS – OR DOES NOT PAY – THE SEVIS I-901 FEE AND WHEN IS IT PAID?

3.A. Do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee?

[New Applicants for Student Status \(F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3\)](#)

[Applicants Reapplying for Student Status \(F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3\) after a Denial of that Status](#)

[Continuing Students \(F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3\) in the United States](#)

[Continuing Students \(F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3\) not in the United States](#)

[New Applicants for Exchange Visitor Status \(J-1\)](#)

[Applicants Reapplying for Exchange Visitor Status \(J-1\) after a Denial of that Status](#)

[Continuing Exchange Visitors \(J-1\) in the United States](#)

[Spouse or Minor Children of Students or Exchange Visitors](#)

New Applicants for Student Status (F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3)

If you are [applying to become a student](#), **pay the new SEVIS I-901 Fee** if your initial Form I-20 is issued on or after October 27, 2008 (see Item 10 on the form).

Applicants Reapplying for Student Status (F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3) after a Denial of that Status

If you have not previously paid the SEVIS I-901 fee, **pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee** if your initial Form I-20 is issued on or after October 27, 2008 (see Item 10 on the form).

Do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee, if you already paid the SEVIS I-901 fee and are:

- Reapplying for a visa within twelve months of the date of initial denial

OR

- From a [visa exempt](#) country and reapplying for status as a student at the POE within 12 months of the date of initial denial

OR

- Filing a motion to reopen a denied change of status application for a change of status to F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3

Continuing Students (F-1, F-3, M-1, or M-3) in the United States

If you are a [continuing student](#), who has maintained status and has not completed your program of study, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are a [continuing student](#), who has maintained status and is transferring or changing program levels, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an F-1 student who wishes to change status to F-3, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an F-3 student who wishes to change status to F-1, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an F-1 or F-3 student who wishes to change status to M-1, M-3 or J-1, **pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before you file for change of status.**

If you are an M-1 student who wishes to change status to M-3, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an M-3 student who wishes to change status to an M-1, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an M-1 or M-3 student who wishes to change status to J-1, **pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee before you file for change of status.**

If you are a student who has been out of status for less than five months, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are a student who has been out of status for more than five months, **pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee before you file for reinstatement.**

Continuing Students (F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3) not in the United States

If you are a [continuing student](#) who has been out of the United States for less than five months and maintained your status prior to leaving the United States, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are a [continuing student](#) who has been out of the United States for more than five months, maintained your status prior to leaving the United States, and have been participating in [authorized overseas study](#), **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are a student who has been out of the United States for more than five months and have **not** participated in [authorized overseas study](#), you are no longer considered a [continuing student](#) by DHS. You need a new initial Form I-

20 from a school and you need to **pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are a student who did not maintain status or you completed a previous program, you are no longer considered a [continuing student](#) by DHS. You need a new initial Form I-20 from a school and you need to **pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

New Applicants for Exchange Visitor Status (J-1)

If you are [applying to become an exchange visitor](#), **pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee** if your initial DS-2019 is dated on or after [October](#) 27, 2008 (see Item 7 on your Form DS-2019) UNLESS you are participating in a federally sponsored program that has a program code starting with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7

Applicants Reapplying for Exchange Visitor Status (J-1) after a Denial of that Status

If you have not previously paid the SEVIS I-901 fee, **pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee** if your initial DS-2019 is dated on or after October 27, 2008 (see Item 7 on your Form DS-2019) UNLESS you are participating in a federally sponsored program that has a program code starting with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7

Do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you already paid a SEVIS I-901 fee for same exchange visitor category you are applying to, the SEVIS I-901 fee is equal or less than the SEVIS I-901 fee already paid, and you are:

- Reapplying for a visa within twelve months of the date of initial denial
OR
- From a [visa exempt](#) country and reapplying for status as an exchange visitor at the POE within 12 months of the date of initial denial
OR
- Filing a motion to reopen or a motion to reconsider a denied change of status application for a change of status to J-1

Continuing Exchange Visitors (J-1) in the United States

If you are a [continuing exchange visitor](#) and have maintained status, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee.**

If you are a [continuing exchange visitor](#) who wishes to transfer from a SEVIS I-901 fee exempt program (the program code starts with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7) to one where the SEVIS I-901 fee is required, **pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an exchange visitor who wishes to change exchange visitor categories, pay the **SEVIS I-901 fee before applying for a change of category** UNLESS the new program code starts with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7.

If you are an exchange visitor who has completed an exchange visitor program and you want to participate in another exchange visitor program, you are no longer considered a [continuing exchange visitor](#) by DHS and DoS. You need a new initial Form DS-2019. **Pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee** UNLESS the new program

code starts with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7.

If you are an exchange visitor and are filing for reinstatement after a substantive violation or you have been out of status between 121 and 269 days, **pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before filing for reinstatement.**

For more information on exchange visitor status violations see the DoS website at <http://exchanges.state.gov/education/jexchanges/participation/change.htm>

Continuing Exchange Visitors (J-1) not in the United States

If you are an exchange visitor outside the United States who maintained status prior to leaving the United States and are returning to continue in the same exchange visitor program, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.**

If you are an exchange visitor outside the United States, who did not maintain status prior to leaving the United States, you are no longer considered a [continuing exchange visitor](#) by DHS and DoS. You need a new initial Form DS-2019. **Pay the SEVIS I-901 Fee UNLESS** the new program code starts with G-1, G-2, G-3, G-7.

Spouse or Minor Children of Students or Exchange Visitors

If you are the spouse or minor child of a student or exchange visitor, **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee** unless you are applying to change status to F-1, M-1, or J-1.

3.B. Who Does Not Pay the Fee

3.B.1. In general, who does not pay the fee?

In general, the following people do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee:

- Students or exchange visitors who meet **all** of the following criteria:
 - Started at a school or a program with a Form I-20 or DS-2019 dated before the fee first came into effect on September 1, 2004;
 - Have not completed that program, including students who transfer schools or changed program levels; and
 - Have maintained status
- Spouses and dependent children who have an F-2, J-2 or M-2 visa.
- Applicants who paid the SEVIS I-901 fee, were denied a visa and are applying again for the same type of visa within 12 months of the date of the denial (exchange visitors must applying in the same category as the previous application and the SEVIS I-901 fee amount must be the same or less than the fee originally paid)
- Applicants who paid the SEVIS I-901 fee, were denied a change of status and are applying for a motion to reopen
- F or M students who fell out of status, but who are applying for a reinstatement within five months of the status violation

- J exchange visitors who fall out of status for minor or technical reasons as defined by DoS at <http://exchanges.state.gov/education/jexchanges/participation/change.htm>
- Government sponsored exchange visitors who are participating in programs with a program code that begins with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7.

For more information on who pays the fees and the exceptions, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)

3.B.2. *If I am a student or exchange visitor who started school or a program before October 27, 2008, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?*

Payment is determined by the original issuance date of the Form I-20 or DS-2019

Any continuing student or exchange visitor who received an initial Form I-20 or DS-2019 dated on or after October 27, 2008, will pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee.

Any continuing student or exchange visitor who received an initial Form I-20 or DS-2019 dated before October 27, 2008, will pay the old SEVIS I-901 fee.

For more information and any exceptions, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)

Continuing students or exchange visitors who have not completed their schooling or exchange visitor program and have maintained status do not need to pay the new increased SEVIS I-901 fee.

Original Issuance Date of Form I-20 or DS-2019

On or after October 27, 2008	Pay new fee
Before October 27, 2008	Pay old fee
Before September 1, 2004 – Continuing	No fee

3.B.3. *Do I have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if I already paid it and my visa was denied?*

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee again if you:

- Reapply for a student visa within 12 months of the initial denial if the original application was for a student visa
- Reapply for an exchange visitor visa within 12 months of the initial denial if the original application and the reapplication are for the same exchange visitor category. See the instructions for [requesting that SEVP transfer your fee payment information](#).

3.B.4. *If I am a government visitor, do I need to pay the fee?*

Government sponsored exchange visitors who are participating in programs with a program code that begins with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7 do not need to pay the fee. All other exchange visitors need to pay the fee.

3.B.5. When is paying a SEVIS I-901 fee not required for continuing students?

Return to the United States to Continue Studies

Continuing students do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee when returning to the United States or applying for a visa to return to the United States after:

- An absence of less than five months to continue the same program of study
- Completing [authorized overseas study](#) as part of the current program (this absence may exceed five months)

Apply for Employment Authorization

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee when applying for employment authorization of any type.

Reinstatement

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you apply for reinstatement after being out of status for less than five months.

Transfer

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you transfer between approved schools at the same educational level. If you are an F-1 or F-3, your I-20 will have *Initial attendance at this school* in block 3, but your SEVIS records will show that you have maintained your status and are continuing your education. It will be helpful if you ask your DSO to put *Continuing student – transfer* in the remarks (block 9). This will help prevent issues with visa issuance, reentry into the United States and fee payment.

Change of Educational Level

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you are an F-1 or F-3 who is changing educational levels. Examples are:

- You graduated from high school and are going directly into college
- You received your Master's degree and going directly into a doctoral program

However, if you are transferring to another school your I-20 will have *Initial attendance at this school* in block 3, but your SEVIS records will show that you have transferred. It will be helpful if you ask your DSO to put in the remarks *Continuing student – transfer* in the remarks (block 9). This will help prevent issues with visa issuance, reentry into the United States and fee payment.

Change of Status Between F-1 and F-3 or Between M-1 and M-3

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee for a change of status if the change is:

- Between an F-1 and an F-3
- Between an M-1 and an M-3

Extension of Stay

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you are applying for an extension of stay so you can have additional time to complete your current program.

Visa Denial

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you have already paid a SEVIS I-901 fee and you are reapplying for the same type of visa within twelve months of the date of initial denial.

Change of Status Denial

You do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you have already paid a SEVIS I-901 fee and you are applying for a motion to reopen or a motion to reconsider denied change of status application within 30 days of the date of denial.

3.B.6. *When is paying a SEVIS I-901 fee not required for continuing exchange visitors?*

Continuing exchange visitors **do not** pay the SEVIS I-901 fee when they:

- Apply for reinstatement after a minor violation or technical infraction (For more information on exchange visitor status violations see the DoS website at <http://exchanges.state.gov/education/jexchanges/participation/change.htm>)
- Return to the United States or apply for a visa to return to the United States to continue participation in a single program
- Apply to change between programs in the same exchange visitor category when the fee for the new program category is the same or less than that for the initial program category
- Apply to extend their stay in order to complete the current program
- Apply for a motion to reopen or a motion to reconsider a denied change of status application within 30 days of denial of the status

3.B.7. *Which exchange visitors do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?*

You do not have to pay the fee if you are already in the United States as an exchange visitor and have maintained your status.

You do not have to pay the fee if the program code on your DS-2019 starts with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7. You are exempt from the fee because the United States federal government sponsors your program.

You do not have to pay the fee if you are reentering the United States to continue an exchange visitor program or program of study as long as you maintain your status and have not completed your program.

You do not have to pay the fee if you are transferring between programs in the same exchange visitor category unless the new program requires a higher fee. For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)

You do not have to pay the fee if you are applying for an extension of stay so you can have additional time to complete your current program.

You do not have to pay the fee if you have already paid, your visa was denied within the last twelve months and you are applying again for a visa in the same exchange visitor category.

3.B.8. Can the fee be waived in accordance with 8 CFR 103.7(c)?

No. There are no fee waivers available for the SEVIS I-901 fee. However, third parties may pay the fee on the behalf of the student or exchange visitor.

3.C. How much is the SEVIS I-901 fee?

For students (F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3)	\$200
For spouses and dependent children (F-2, M-2 or J-2) of students or exchange visitors	None
For exchange visitors (J-1)	\$180
UNLESS participating in:	
• Federally sponsored exchange visitor program (program codes start with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7)	None
• Summer work/travel program	\$35
• Au pair program	\$35
• Camp counselor program	\$35

3.D. How does the SEVIS I-901 fee payment process impact getting a visa?

If you are required to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee (for more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)) and need a visa to enter the United States as student or exchange visitor, you must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before going to the United States embassy or consulate for your visa interview.

If you are required to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee and do not pay it, your visa application will be denied by DoS.

3.E. How do I apply to become a student (F or M)?

You must apply to a SEVP approved school. If the school accepts you, you will receive a Form I-20 from the school. Pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before applying for a visa, status at a POE, or filing for a change of status.

If you are outside of the United States, and not from a [visa exempt](#) country, apply to the local United States embassy or consulate for a visa. See the DoS website at <http://unitedstatesvisas.gov/whatis/index.html> for more information on visas.

If you are outside the United States and are from a [visa exempt](#) country, apply for student status at the POE.

If you are in the United States in another nonimmigrant status, submit your application for change of status to USCIS.

3.F. How do I apply to become an exchange visitor (J)?

You must apply to a DoS approved exchange visitor program. If accepted, you will receive a Form DS-2019. Determine if you need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#) If you are subject to the SEVIS I-901 fee, pay it before applying for a visa, status at a POE, or filing for a change of status.

If you are outside the United States, and not from a [visa exempt](#) country, apply to the local United States embassy or consulate for a visa. See the DOS website at <http://unitedstatesvisas.gov/whatis/index.html> for more information on visas.

If you are outside the United States and are from a [visa exempt](#) country, apply for exchange visitor status at the POE.

If you are in the United States in another nonimmigrant status, submit your application for change of status to USCIS.

3.G. How do I know if I need a visa?

If you wish to enter the United States as an F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 nonimmigrant (a student or exchange visitor), you must have a visa unless you are from a [visa exempt country](#).

If you are from a visa exempt country, you will need to apply for student or exchange visitor status at the POE. You will need [proof of payment](#).

For more information, see the section on [when to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee](#).

See the DoS website at <http://unitedstatesvisas.gov/whatis/index.html> for more information on visas.

3.H. When to Pay the Fee

3.H.1. When do prospective students or exchange visitors pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?

The following chart will tell you when in the process of applying to become a student or exchange visitor you must pay the fee. See [how long it takes to get a receipt](#) for an estimate of the time needed to process a fee payment.

Are you in the United States?	Do you need an F, M or J visa?	When to submit
No	Yes	Pay the fee before you go to your visa interview at a United States embassy or consulate. The SEVIS I-901 fee payment does

		not have to be completed until you appear for the interview. You can schedule an interview before you make the SEVIS I-901 fee payment. Allow time for the payment to be received and verified .
No	No, I am from a country that does not require a visa	Pay the fee and allow time for processing before you appear at the U. S. POE. You will not be able to pay the fee at the POE.
Yes	No	Pay the fee before you apply for a change of status or reinstatement (For more information, see the section, Do I pay the fee? , to determine if you must pay the fee)

3.H.2. When must continuing exchange visitors (J-1 nonimmigrants who have begun, but not finished a program) pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?

Continuing exchange visitors must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before:

- Filing a reinstatement application after a substantive violation
- Filing a reinstatement application after they have been out of status between 121 and 269 days
- Applying for a change of exchange visitor category unless the new exchange visitor category is fee exempt (federally sponsored programs with program codes that start with G-1, G-2, G-3, or G-7)

3.H.3. When must continuing students (F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3 nonimmigrants that have begun, but not finished, a program) pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?

Continuing students must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before:

- Filing an application for reinstatement when they have been out of status for more than five months
- Applying for a new visa or returning to the United States after an absence of five months or more that did not involve authorized overseas study
- Filing an application for a change of status to an F, M or J classification except for changes between F-1 and F-3 or between M-1 and M-3.

3.H.4. Do I need to pay the fee before I receive a Form I-20 or DS-2019?

No, you must have a Form I-20 or DS-2019 before you pay the fee.

3.H.5. Do I pay the fee for every Form I-20 or DS-2019 I receive?

No. If you receive acceptance packages from several schools or Exchange Visitor Program Sponsors, please select a school or program and use that Form I-20 or DS-2019 to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee.

We highly recommend that you pay the SEVIS I-901 fee using the form from the sponsor or school you will attend. Fee payment is made for a specific SEVIS ID number. Each Form I-20 or DS-Form DS-2019 has a SEVIS ID number. All SEVIS ID numbers start with the letter *N*.

- On the Form I-20, the number is on the top right hand side of the first page under the words Student's Copy and above the barcode.
- On the DS-2019, the number is on the top right hand side of the page in the block about the barcode.

3.I. More General Questions on Who Pays the Fee

3.I.1. Do I need to pay the fee if I am already enrolled as an F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1?

No. You do not have to pay the fee if you are currently in the United States as a nonimmigrant student or exchange visitor and you have maintained your status. See the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#), for exceptions.

3.I.2. Do I have to pay the fee every time I apply for a student or exchange visitor visa?

Not necessarily. If you are a continuing student or continuing to participate in the same exchange visitor program and you have continued to maintain your status, you do not need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before applying for a new visa. See the question on [continuing studies](#) for more information.

However, you do need to pay the fee if you are starting a new program or course of study (excluding F students who are transferring schools or changing program levels).

For more information, see the related questions:

- [Do I pay the fee?](#)
- [Do I need to pay the fee if I need a new visa to return to the United States to continue my studies or participate in an exchange visitor program?](#)
- [If I am a student applying for a new visa with an initial Form I-20 but I have been out of the United States for less than five months, do I need to pay the fee?](#)

3.I.3. Do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if I need a new visa to return to the United States to continue my studies or participate in an exchange visitor program?

No. When you are applying for a new visa to return the United States, you do not have to pay the fee if you are reentering to continue a program of study and:

- You maintained your status
- You have not completed your program unless you are an F student transferring to another school or program within five months of leaving the United States
- You have not been out of the United States for more than five months except to participate in a [study abroad program approved](#) by your school

3.I.4. Do spouses and minor children of students and exchange visitors pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?

No. Spouses and minor child of students and exchange visitors (F-2, M-2 or J-2 nonimmigrants) do not have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. However, if the spouse or minor child wishes to change status to F-1, M-1, or J-1, he or she must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before filing a change of status application.

3.I.5. Which students or exchange visitors are visa exempt and can apply for F-1, F-3, J-1, M-1 or M-3 status at the POE?

Potential students or exchange visitors from visa exempt countries can apply for F-1, F-3, J-1, M-1 or M-3 status at the POE. You must [pay the fee](#) and have [evidence of payment](#) prior to arrival at the POE. The following people qualify as visa exempt.

Citizens of Canada or Bermuda	Applying for F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 status upon entry
Bahamian nationals British subject residents in the Bahamian, Cayman, Turks or Caicos Islands	Entering the United States without a visa as described in 8 CFR 212.1a and applying for F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 status upon entry

3.J. Specific Questions About F and M Students and SEVIS I-901 Fee Payment

3.J.1. If I am a student who is reentering with an existing visa, but a new I-20 for initial attendance, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?

Students who are applying for initial F or M status with a Form I-20 issued on or after October 27, 2008, (e.g. are new students or are students who departed the United States without status and reentering) must pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee.

However, if you are an F-1 or F-3 student changing educational levels or transferring to another school and have maintained your status, you do not need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. Your I-20 will have *Initial attendance at this*

school in block 3, but your SEVIS records will show that you have maintained your status and are continuing your education. It will be helpful if you ask your DSO to put in the remarks *Continuing student change of education level* or *Continuing student – transfer* in the remarks (block 9). This will help prevent issues with reentry and fee payment.

If you are an M-1 or M-3 student transferring to another school and have maintained your status, you do not need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. It will be helpful if you ask your DSO to put *Continuing student – transfer* in the remarks (block 9). This will help prevent issues with reentry and fee payment.

3.J.2. *If I am a student applying for a new visa with an initial Form I-20 but I have been out of the United States for less than five months, do I need to pay the fee?*

It depends on your circumstances. If you did not maintain your student status prior to departing the United States, you are starting a new program from the perspective of your nonimmigrant status— even if you are returning to the same school and pursuing the same degree. In this case, you must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. If you have questions about whether or not you have maintained your student status, contact the DSO from your school.

However, if you are an F-1 or F-3 changing educational levels or any student transferring to another school and have maintained your status, you do not need to pay the fee. Your I-20 will have *Initial attendance at this school* in block 3, but your SEVIS records will show that you have maintained your status and are continuing your education. It will be helpful if you ask your DSO to put in the remarks *Continuing student change of education level* or *Continuing student – transfer* in the remarks (block 9). This will help prevent issues with visa issuance, reentry into the United States and fee payment.

3.J.3. *If I am a student who has changed educational levels and am returning home to renew an expired visa, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?*

No. A change of level is considered a continuation of your current program. However, your I-20 will have *Initial attendance at this school* in block 3, but your SEVIS records will show that you have maintained your status and are continuing your education. It will be helpful if you ask your DSO to put *Continuing student change of education level* in the remarks (block 9). This will help prevent issues with reentry and fee payment.

3.J.4. *I am a commuter student and I receive an initial Form I-20 every semester, do I need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee every semester?*

No. You are considered a continuing student and will not need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee unless you meet one of the qualifications shown in the section [Do I pay the fee?](#)

If you start a program of study with a Form I-20 you will pay the SEVIS I-901 fee using the first Form I-20 your school issues. You will not need to pay the fee

again unless you meet one of the qualifications shown in the section [Do I pay the fee?](#)

However, since all of your Forms I-20 will be **initial** Forms I-20, we highly recommend that you keep your first Form I-20 and a copy of your SEVIS I-901 fee receipt when crossing the border. In addition, ask your P/DSO to put *Continuing Commuter Student* in the remarks of your subsequent Forms I-20.

3.K. Specific Questions about J Exchange Visitors and SEVIS I-901 Fee Payment

3.K.1. *I applied for several exchange visitor programs. I did not have a final answer from my preferred program in time to enter before the start of my preferred program. So I entered the United States in another program and was subsequently accepted by my preferred program. Do I have to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee when I apply to DoS to change programs?*

It depends. If the two programs are in the same exchange visitor category, you do not need to pay an additional SEVIS I-901 fee. If you are changing exchange visitor categories, you must pay the fee.

3.K.2. *If I am an exchange visitor who is reentering with a valid J-1 visa but with an initial DS-2019 form (non-transfer), do I need to pay the fee?*

Yes. A new initial DS-2019 indicates you have started a new program. You must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee every time you start a new program.

3.K.3. *If I participated as an exchange visitor short-term scholar and will be returning to the same exchange visitor program for another short-term stay, do I have to pay the fee again?*

Yes. Anytime you complete a program and then apply again to become an exchange visitor, this is a new program for the purposes of SEVIS.

3.K.4. *If I participated in a short-term program and then decide to participate in another short-term program, do I have to pay the fee again?*

Yes. If you complete a program and then apply for another program – even if it is from the same exchange visitor program sponsor - you must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. You must pay the fee every time you start a new program.

3.K.5. *What if I plan to participate in more than one exchange visitor program while in the United States?*

You must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee for each exchange visitor program in which you participate.

You may, however, start in one exchange visitor program and, with approval, transfer to another exchange visitor program without paying the SEVIS I-901 fee.

3.L. What happens if I should pay the fee and I did not?

If you are required to pay the fee and do not, you will be denied a visa and or entry to the United States. If you are already in the United States and are required to pay the fee before submitting a benefit application, not paying the fee is grounds for denying your application.

If you did not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee when required, pay it as soon as you discover the error so that you will not be denied benefits you might otherwise be granted.

Not paying the SEVIS I-901 fee is also a basis for denying application for a benefit based on the nonimmigrant's F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 status. For example, while an additional fee is not required when applying for a work permit, if you were subject to the fee when becoming a student or exchange visitor, you will be denied a work permit if you did not pay the initial fee.

Failure to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee is not a basis for removal. However, if you do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee, you may jeopardize your status. Not maintaining status is a basis for removal.

3.M. What happens if my Form I-20 or DS-2019 was issued before October 27, 2008, but was corrected and reissued after October 27, 2008. Do I have to pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee?

Payment is determined by the original issuance date of the Form I-20 or DS-2019

Any student or exchange visitor who received an initial Form I-20 or DS-2019 dated on or after October 27, 2008, will pay the new SEVIS I-901 fee.

Any student or exchange visitor who received an initial Form I-20 or DS-2019 dated before October 27, 2008, will pay the old SEVIS I-901 fee.

For more information and any exceptions, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)

Continuing students or exchange visitors who have not completed their schooling or exchange visitor program and have maintained status do not need to pay the new increased SEVIS I-901 fee.

Original Issuance Date of Form I-20 or DS-2019

On or after October 27, 2008	Pay new fee
Before October 27, 2008	Pay old fee
Before September 1, 2004 – Continuing	No fee

4. HOW IS THE SEVIS I-901 FEE PAID AND THE FORM I-901 FILED?

4.A. Can you give me a general overview of the SEVIS I-901 fee payment process?

In general, you need to:

- Either be currently enrolled in an approved school or exchange visitor program or have been accepted into one. You will need a Form I-20 or DS-2019.
- Determine if you need to pay the fee. For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)
- Pay the [fee in time](#) to have it processed before a consular or DHS official must make a decision about your visa, entry into the United States or other application where the fee is required.

Form I-901

You will need to fill in a Form I-901 with information from your Form I-20 or DS-2019 and pay the required fee. For most people, the SEVIS I-901 fee is \$200. See the [Fee Amount Chart](#) for more detailed fee information. You have the option of paying an additional \$35 to have your receipt sent by expedited delivery (courier service) rather than by mail.

You can fill in the Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com or send a [paper version](#) to:

By Mail

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
P.O. Box 970020
St. Louis, MO 63197-0020
United States

By Courier (to expedite delivery to SEVP)

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
1005 Convention Plaza
St. Louis, MO 63101
United States
Phone Number: 1-314-418-8833 (United States Country Code 011)

If you have Internet access, completing the form online will help ensure that you provide all the information in the correct format. This helps speed processing.

Paper forms are scanned and read by machine. If information is missing or hard to read, the form will be manually reviewed. SEVP will attempt to fill in missing or hard-to-read information. This could cause a short delay in processing your form or could result in the form being [returned to you for correction](#). When using a paper form, please print clearly. Your [SEVIS ID number](#), last name (surname or family name) and date of birth are critical data elements. These are needed to match the information on your Form I-20 or DS-2019.

Payment Options

You can pay your fee by [credit or debit card](#) if you are submitting your form online. If you pay by [credit or debit card](#), you should print out a receipt if you need one immediately and cannot wait to receive a receipt through the mail. See the section on [credit and debit cards](#) for more information about the cards SEVP will accept.

You can pay by international money order or check drawn on a financial institution in the United States and payable in United States currency. (See the section on [payment by check or money order](#) for more information.)

Checks are accepted subject to collection. If the bank on which it is drawn does not honor the check, you will be charged a \$30 fee.

- If you fill in the Form I-901 online and choose the option to pay by check or money order, you will be able to print a payment coupon. There is a control number on the top of the coupon. Write the control number, your name and your [SEVIS ID number](#) on your check or money order and attach the coupon.
- If you use a paper Form I-901, write your [SEVIS ID number](#) and name on your check or money order and attach the form before sending it in.

Record of Payment

There are two records of payment:

- Electronic payment information kept in the SEVIS I-901 fee payment system
- A paper receipt

You will get a paper receipt in the mail for all payments. You can also print a paper receipt immediately if you file online and pay with a [credit or debit card](#).

See the [section on receipts](#) for more information.

4.A.1. What are the options for fee payment?

Currently, the options for individuals to pay the fee are by [credit or debit card](#) via the Internet or by [check or money order](#) mailed to SEVP. Any organization or individual may use one of these payment methods to pay on behalf of a student or exchange visitor. See [Payment Overview](#) for more information.

Certain exchange visitor program sponsors may be eligible to participate in a [bulk filer program](#) and pay SEVIS I-901 fees electronically using ACH.

4.A.2. Can you give me a checklist to help ensure I complete my Form I-901 and pay properly?

Completing the Form

You can complete the form online at www.fmiffee.com or on paper. The section, [Where can I get a copy of the Form I-901?](#), has details on getting the form.

You will need a copy of your Form I-20 or DS-2019 for the school or Exchange Visitor Program you wish to attend.

If filling in the Form I-901 online, the system will prevent most errors. The most important information for the online system is your [SEVIS ID number](#). Be careful to enter this number correctly.

Checklist for [Paper Form I-901](#)

- Legible printing
- [SEVIS ID number](#) is correct and matches your Form I-20 or DS-2019
- Your last name is entered **exactly** as it appears on your Form I-20 or DS-2019
- You have given the address where you want your receipt sent
- If you have chosen expedited delivery your address must be a street address not a post office box
- Your date of birth is entered **exactly** as it appears on your Form I-20 or DS-2019
- You have correctly indicated the fee amount
- You have selected expedited delivery if you want to pay the optional \$35 for delivery by courier
- Your total includes the fee and the delivery charge if you requested expedited delivery

Payment

Currently there are two ways to pay the fee:

- [Credit or debit card](#) when paying online
- [Check or money order](#) with a coupon printed from the online Form I-901 or with a paper Form I-901 mailed to SEVP

Checks are accepted subject to collection. If the bank on which it is drawn does not honor the check, you must repay the SEVIS I-901 fee and pay an additional \$30 fee to DHS Debt Management Center. See the section on [returned \(bounced\) checks](#) for more information.

The payment must be submitted for the exact amount of the fee due. Your payment will be returned if you:

- Do not send a payment coupon or paper Form I-901 with payment
- Send a payment in the wrong amount

However, SEVP is not responsible for returned payments that are lost in transit.

Checklist for Paying by Check or Money Order

Use this checklist when paying by check or money order.

- The payment is by international money order or a foreign draft drawn on a financial institution in the United States and payable in United States currency. For more details, see the section on [payment by check or money order](#)
- Your name and [SEVIS ID number](#) are on the check or money order

- The check or money order is made out to *I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee*
- If you are using a coupon printed from the Internet, find the control number on top of the coupon and write it on your check or money order
- Write your name and [SEVIS ID number](#) on your check or money order
- Attach your check or money order to your coupon or paper Form I-901

Mailing the Form and Payment

Ensure your payment envelope has your correct return address. Also, be sure the envelope has both your payment and your coupon or Form I-901. Send to:

By Mail

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
P.O. Box 970020
St. Louis, MO 63197-0020
United States

By Courier (to expedite delivery to SEVP)

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
1005 Convention Plaza
St. Louis, MO 63101
United States
Phone Number: 1-314-418-8833 (United States Country Code 011)

4.A.3. How do applicants in the United States file the Form I-901 and pay the fee?

Applicants in the United States can use the same methods as applicants who are not in the United States. See the [Payment Overview](#) for detailed information.

4.B. What if my school or exchange visitor program collects a SEVIS I-901 fee?

Some schools or exchange visitor program sponsors may collect a fee to defray their own costs for programs that support international student or exchange visitors. These are not United States government mandated fees and are not used to pay the government-required SEVIS I-901 fee.

Some schools or exchange visitor program sponsors, however, may choose to collect the government-required SEVIS I-901 fee from you and pay on your behalf. If your school or exchange visitor program charges a SEVIS I-901 fee, you need to ask if it is the US government fee. If it is, the school or exchange visitor program should provide you with a written receipt on a Form I-797 or other confirmation of fee payment, to show the fee has been paid.

4.C. Form I-901 questions

4.C.1. *What is the purpose of the Form I-901?*

The Form I-901, when properly completed, gives SEVP sufficient information to:

- Determine the correct amount of the SEVIS I-901 fee due
- Ensure the payment is posted to the correct SEVIS record
- Mail the receipt to the address specified by the student or exchange visitor
- Provide expedited delivery, if this option is requested and payment is made

4.C.2. *Where can I get a copy of the Form I-901?*

The Form I-901 is available, in PDF, for printing and downloading from the web at www.ice.gov/sevis/i901. You can also fill out the form online at www.fmjfee.com.

If you do not have Internet access, ask your school or exchange visitor program for a copy of the form. You will **not** be able to get forms at a United States consulate or embassy.

4.C.3. *What documents do I need to fill in my Form I-901?*

You need the information from your Form I-20 or DS-2019 to fill out the Form I-901. You do not need to send a copy with the Form I-901.

4.C.4. *What if I have more than one Form I-20 or DS-2019?*

You only need to pay the fee for one Form I-20 or DS-2019, except in the case of a person who is applying to enter the United States to participate in [more than one exchange visitor program](#). Pay the SEVIS I-901 fee using the information from the Form I-20 or DS-2019 issued by the school or exchange visitor program(s) you wish to attend.

4.C.5. *What do I do if I have changed my mind about which school or program I will attend after paying the SEVIS I-901 fee?*

You need to keep the copy of the Form I-20 or DS-2019 for the school or program for which you paid.

If you have not entered the country, you will be able to go to your visa interview or, if [visa exempt](#), apply for student or exchange visitor status at the POE with:

- The Form I-20 or DS-2019 you used to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee
- Your SEVIS I-901 fee receipt
- The Form I-20 or DS-2019 for the program you now wish to attend

When you arrive in the United States, you need to [request that SEVP transfer your fee payment information](#) from the [SEVIS ID number](#) you paid on to the one for the school or program you are actually attending.

4.C.6. How do I find the SEVIS ID number on my Form I-20 or DS-2019?

All SEVIS ID numbers start with the letter **N**.

- On the Form I-20, the number is on the top right hand side of the first page under the words *Student's Copy* and above the barcode.
- On the DS-2019, the number is on the top right hand side of the page in the box above the barcode.

4.C.7. How do I find the date of issuance on my Form I-20 or DS-2019?

The date of issuance is in block 10 on the Form I-20. It is in block 7 on the Form DS-2019. If your school or exchange visitor program sponsor gives you an updated or corrected Form I-20 or DS-2019, this date may change. You may also request that your DSO or RO annotate the remarks of your updated or corrected form with *Updated/Corrected – Originally Issued on [give date]*.

4.D. Questions about payments

4.D.1. What is a payment coupon?

Payment coupons are generated when you fill in your Form I-901 online and choose to pay by check or money order. You should print it out and mail the coupon in with your payment. You will **not** need to fill in a paper Form I-901 as well. When your payment is received at SEVP, the coupon will be used to match your payment to the information you entered online.

4.D.2. What are the requirements for paying by check or money order?

Your check or money order must be an international money order or a foreign draft drawn on a financial institution in the United States and payable in United States currency. Checks must be from one of the following:

- Banks chartered or operated in the United States
- Foreign subsidiaries of United States banks
- Foreign banks that have an arrangement with a United States bank to issue a check, money order or foreign draft that is drawn on a United States bank.

Make checks and money orders payable to *I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee*.

4.D.3. How do I pay by check?

Your check needs to be a draft drawn on a financial institution in the United States and payable in United States currency. Make it payable to *I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee*. You must provide SEVP with Form I-901 information. There are two options for doing this:

- Fill in your Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com, choose the option to pay by check or money order and print a payment coupon
- Complete a paper Form I-901

See the [Payment Overview](#) and the [Payment Checklist](#) for more information.

4.D.4. Can I pay online with a check using ACH (Automated Clearing House)?

No, ACH payments are not available for individuals.

Certain exchange visitor program sponsors may be authorized to make bulk payments for exchange visitors participating in their program using ACH. See the section on [bulk filers](#) for more information. Your program should notify you if they make the payment for you. Contact your exchange visitor program if you have questions.

4.D.5. Can I pay with traveler's check?

No. See the section on [Payment Options](#) for authorized payment methods.

4.D.6. Can I use a third party check for payment?

No. A third party check is one that is made out to you and that you endorse. Payments for the SEVIS I-901 fee must be made payable directly to *I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee*. You can, however, have any person or organization use a check or money order to pay the fee on your behalf.

For more information, see the section on [payment by check or money order](#).

4.D.7. Can I send the Form I-901 and payment by courier?

Yes. The correct address for courier payments is:

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
1005 Convention Plaza
St. Louis, MO 63101
United States
Phone Number: 1-314-418-8833 (United States Country Code 011)

4.D.8. What credit and debit cards are accepted?

SEVP accepts payment by:

- Visa, MasterCard or American Express credit cards
- Debit cards (also known as check cards) that have the Visa or MasterCard logo

Credit or debit cards can only be used when paying the SEVIS I-901 fee and completing the Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com.

4.D.9. How do I pay by credit or debit card?

The only option for paying by [credit or debit card](#) is when you fill in the Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com. When you have filled in the online form, you will be asked if you want to pay by credit or debit card or by check or money order. Choose the credit card option. See the section on [credit/debit cards](#) for more

information. See the [Payment Overview](#) for more details on the payment process.

4.D.10. Can I pay with a debit card?

Yes, if it is a debit card (also known as a check card) that has the Visa or MasterCard logo.

4.D.11. Can I pay with a credit or debit card when I mail in a payment?

No. [Credit or debit cards](#) can only be used to make online payments when submitting the Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com.

4.D.12. What would cause my mailed payment to be rejected and returned?

We make every effort to use the information you provide to match your payment to the correct SEVIS record. You can help by filling out the Form I-901 carefully. See the [Payment Checklist](#) for details.

However, if the information on your Form I-901 is incorrect or illegible, we cannot process it. If there is a usable return address on the form, check or envelope, we will return your form and payment with an explanation of the problem(s).

Your Form I-901 or [payment coupon](#) could also be rejected because of other payment issues. The most common rejection reasons include:

- No check or money order included
- The payment is the wrong amount -- we cannot accept overpayments or underpayments
- The payment is not an international money order or a check drawn on a United States financial institution and payable in United States funds (see the section on [payment by check or money order](#) for more information)

If your payment is rejected, make the corrections and resubmit your Form I-901/[payment coupon](#) and payment.

4.D.13. What if SEVP says that my payment was returned, but I do not receive it?

SEVP makes every effort to return payments that are not acceptable. However, SEVP is not responsible for any items lost in transit or that cannot be delivered because of an inaccurate or incomplete address.

4.D.14. Can I pay with cash?

No. Do not send cash. If you do, your payment will be returned. However, SEVP is not responsible for returned payments that are lost in transit. See the [Payment Overview](#) for more information.

4.D.15. What currency can be used to pay SEVIS I-901 fee?

Currency or cash cannot be used to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. See the [Payment Overview](#) for more information.

4.D.16. How can I pay if I do not have access to a computer or credit or debit card?

You have two choices. You can:

- Use the mail or a courier service to send a check or money order to SEVP. (see the [Payment Overview](#) for more information)
- Ask a third party – a friend, relative, charitable organization, etc – to help pay the fee via the Internet

4.D.17. Can someone else pay for me?

Yes. Any person or organization can fill-in your Form I-901 and pay your SEVIS I-901 fee. If a third party other than your school or exchange visitor program files the Form I-901, be sure to provide them with the information from your Form I-20 or DS-2019 so they can complete the Form I-901 accurately.

4.D.18. How do I make a third party payment if I am paying the SEVIS I-901 fee on the behalf of a student or exchange visitor?

Payment by [credit or debit card](#)

You need to have the student or exchange visitor provide you with the following information exactly as it appears on the Form I-20 or DS-2019 from their selected school or exchange visitor program:

- Name (last, middle, first)
- [SEVIS ID number](#)
- Date of birth
- Gender
- Country of birth
- City of birth
- Country of citizenship
- School code if a student
- If an exchange visitor
 - Exchange visitor program number
 - Exchange visitor category
- Passport number (optional)

You will also need to provide the address where you want to have the receipt delivered. If you decide to pay the \$35 fee for expedited delivery, it is best to have a phone number so the courier company can contact you if there is a problem with the delivery.

You can fill in the Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com.

Payment by check or money order

SEVP will need the Form I-901 information and the payment. There are two options for providing the Form I-901 information:

- You or the student/exchange visitor can fill in the Form I-901 information online at www.fmjfee.com and print a payment [coupon](#) (see the section above for details on filling in the form online)
- You can fill in a paper Form I-901.

Mail the form or the coupon in with your payment. See the [Payment Overview](#) for more information.

4.E. What are the options and processes for paying and filing for more than one person?

Any individual or organization may pay the fee for multiple people. If filing online, each Form I-901 must be filled in individually. If payment is by credit or debit card, then a separate payment must be made for each.

If you choose to pay the fee for a group with a single check, be absolutely certain that the Form I-901 information is correct and that your check is for the correct amount. If we have to reject one form for incomplete or incorrect information and there is a single check for the entire group, we will have to return all the forms and the check. We only accept exact payments.

If you do pay for a group using one check, we recommend that you calculate the fee very carefully. You may wish to file online because this will help prevent data entry errors.

You may choose to bundle separate forms and payments in one envelope. If so, please be sure you staple the check or money order to the appropriate Form(s) I-901.

Some exchange visitor program sponsors may be authorized to use bulk filing to pay for groups of exchange visitors. See the information on [bulk filing](#) for more information.

4.F. Bulk Filer

4.F.1. What is a bulk filer?

Bulk filers are exchange visitor program sponsors that have worked with SEVP to institute a batch process for filing Forms I-901 and paying the fee with an ACH transaction.

4.F.2. What organizations can apply for the bulk filing program?

Currently the bulk filer capability can only support exchange visitor program sponsors. See the Fact Sheet for bulk filers for more information.

4.F.3. How does my organization express an interest in bulk filing?

Any organization interested in bulk filing should send an e-mail to toolbox.sevis@dhs.gov expressing your interest and giving a point of contact. We will contact your organization directly.

4.F.4. Do bulk filers have to pay the fee for all applicants?

No. Bulk filers may pay the fee for whichever applicants they wish – all exchange visitors in a program or only selected exchange visitors.

4.F.5. If a bulk filer pays a fee for an applicant and the person participates in a different program, can the bulk filer receive a refund?

Only the individual for whom the SEVIS I-901 fee is paid may request a refund. The person or organization that paid the fee will receive the refund, if approved. See the [section on refunds](#) for more detailed information.

4.G. Privacy and accessibility questions

4.G.1. How is the privacy of my credit or debit card payment information protected?

Payment is through a secure site specifically for [credit or debit card](#) payments. Your card information is used only to process the payment request with your bank. The United States government does not maintain your credit or debit card information – only a confirmation indicating the transaction was successful.

4.G.2. Is the information that I submit shared with advertisers?

No. The data collected through the SEVIS I-901 fee system is used only for DHS purposes.

4.G.3. Why does the Form I-901 request my phone number? What if I don't include it?

The phone number is needed only if you select expedited delivery. The purpose is for the courier company to be able to schedule a delivery. If you do not include your phone number, it may be harder for the courier company to make a timely delivery of your receipt. We **will not** reject your Form I-901 if you leave the phone number blank.

4.G.4. Is the I-901 website accessible to people with disabilities?

Yes. The fee payment website meets the requirements of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act, which defines standards for making websites accessible to the disabled.

4.G.5. *With this new SEVIS I-901 fee, there may be scam artists who set up web sites claiming to be authentic. How do I know I am on the right web site and paying the right person?*

The website to file and pay the SEVIS I-901 fee is www.fmjfee.com. You should see this URL displayed in the top line of your browser. This will let you know you are on the correct web site.

We will never send you e-mail requesting any banking or [credit or debit card](#) information.

If you suspect fraud, please send a [letter or e-mail](#) to SEVP with *Suspected Fraud* in the subject line.

4.H. Technical problems while paying on the Internet

4.H.1. *Can I fill in the Form I-901 online and pay by check if I do not have a printer?*

No, you must be able to print out the coupon and send it with your check or money order.

4.H.2. *What can I do if I try to get to the SEVP I-901 site and I receive "Page Cannot Be Displayed" error?*

This is a problem when you have an older version of Internet Explorer. You have two options: go the Microsoft support website or contact the Microsoft hotline for directions on how to correct the problem.

Microsoft Support Website

Go to www.support.microsoft.com. Type Q305217 in the search bar in the upper left hand corner. The search will return with one article listed - click the link and you will be directed to an article titled *Page Cannot Be Displayed Error During SSL 3.0 Server Session Timeout*.

This page provides additional information on how to correct the problem.

Microsoft Hotline

You can call the Microsoft Product Support and Services hotline at (800) 936-4900.

- From the main menu, select Option 3 - If you are calling for a Hot Fix, press 3.
- When the Microsoft tech picks up, tell them the following:
 - Quote Q305217 as the document identifier describing the problem being experienced.
 - Confirm to the tech that this is the problem you are having.
- The tech will assist you with the appropriate solution.
- The tech will give you a case number starting with the letters SRX that can be used to reference your case should you need to call back.

4.H.3. Why does the I-901 website page begin to appear and then stop halfway through?

This is most likely due to a slow Internet connection. Try using the *Refresh* or *Reload* button on your browser.

4.H.4. The browser indicates that I do not have strong enough browser security to view the page. How can I pay the I-901 fee online?

All data entered into the SEVP web site and sent through the Internet is protected using 128-bit encryption and SSL version 3.0. The browsers supported are IE 5.0 or above and Netscape 4.5 and above with 128-bit encryption. Please verify the version and browser encryption strength you are using.

- For Internet Explorer: Click *Help* on the top menu bar and then click *About Internet Explorer*. This will show the version and Cipher (encryption) strength.
- For Netscape Navigator: Click *Help* on the top menu bar and then click *About Navigator*. This will show the version at the top of the page and encryption software supported at the bottom left hand side of the page.
 - Access the encryption and SSL versions supported by clicking on the *Security* button and then the Navigator selection.
 - Click *Enable SSL (Secure Sockets Layer) v3 - Configure SSL v3* to enable 128-bit encryption.

4.H.5. When I type my information into the I-901 form and click Submit, the browser hangs and does not return another screen. Has my information been submitted?

You can call Customer Service at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country code 011) and the operator will be able to verify whether or not your information was submitted.

4.H.6. I clicked Submit on the screen but ended up on a page showing I-901 Instructions. What happened?

This occurs when your session exceeds the time limit for completing an I-901 payment. You need to re-enter your information in order to complete the transaction.

4.H.7. What browser do I need to access the website? What if my browser is not the right version?

Any browser that supports the required security - that can establish an SSLv3 128-bit Secure Socket Layer session with our server - can be used. This includes:

- Netscape Navigator 7.1 and higher
- Internet Explorer 5.0 and higher running on a Microsoft Windows operating system

- Safari 1.2.1 and higher running on an Apple Mac OS X operating system
- Mozilla 1.6 and higher running on either a Microsoft Windows or Apple Mac OS X operating system

If you do not have one of the browser versions listed above, you can download one from the website of manufacturer.

4.I. What are some tips for fee payment?

4.I.1. How do I avoid problems paying the fee?

See the [checklist for filling out the Form I-901 and payment](#).

4.I.2. What is the fastest way to pay the fee?

The fastest way to pay the fee is to file your Form I-901 online at www.fmjfee.com, pay by [credit or debit card](#) and print a receipt. Allow three working days for the information to be posted to SEVIS and the Department of State consular information system.

4.J. What if I have a problem with making a payment?

The SEVP website at www.ice.gov/sevis has a complete set of questions and answers for the most common problems. You may also call customer service at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011) to address specific questions or issues with a particular payment. See the section on [sources of help](#) for more detailed information.

4.J.1. What if I complete the online Form I-901 and then do not select a payment method?

If you do not complete the payment process and receive a control number (coupon payment) or a confirmation number ([credit or debit card](#) payment), your online Form I-901 is not saved. You will need to start the process over and choose a payment method.

4.J.2. What if I realize I made a mistake on my Form I-901 after I filed it on the web or mailed it to SEVP?

The answer to this question depends on the error. SEVP processes the payments the day they are received, so it is likely that we have already processed your form or returned your Form I-901 and payment.

The following is a list of common errors and the suggested remedy.

Error	Suggested Remedy
I paid on the wrong Form I-20 or DS-2019	If the fee is the same, do not repay the fee. Keep the receipt and both forms to document the action.

Error	Suggested Remedy
	See the process for reassigning a SEVIS I-901 fee from one SEVIS ID number to another.
I sent a check or money order for the wrong amount of money or did not send a check	Resubmit the Form I-901 and a new payment. Your original payment will be returned, as SEVP cannot process underpayments or overpayments.
I gave incorrect address for the receipt	<p>Call the 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011)</p> <p>OR</p> <p>Send an e-mail to fmjfee.SEVIS@DHS.gov with <i>Address Correction</i> in the subject line</p> <p>OR</p> <p>Mail a letter to:</p> <p>SEVP ATTN: SEVIS I-901 fee CRU 800 K Street NW Suite 1000 Washington, DC 20536 USA</p> <p>Explain the problem and give your name, date of birth, SEVIS ID number and the correct address for the receipt.</p>
I spelled my name incorrectly	<p>Call the 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011)</p> <p>OR</p> <p>Send an e-mail to fmjfee.SEVIS@DHS.gov with <i>Name Correction</i> in the subject line</p> <p>OR</p> <p>Mail a letter to:</p> <p>SEVP ATTN: SEVIS I-901 fee CRU 800 K Street NW Suite 1000 Washington, DC 2536</p>

Error	Suggested Remedy
	<p>USA</p> <p>Explain the problem and give your name, date of birth, SEVIS ID number and the correct address for the receipt.</p>

4.J.3. What if I pay too much?

We cannot accept overpayments. We do not have a process for accepting part of a payment and returning the remainder. Your Form I-901 and payment will be returned and you will need to file again. Be sure you send a payment for the exact amount.

4.J.4. What if I pay too little?

We cannot accept underpayments. We do not have a process for accepting part of a payment and debiting you for the remainder. Your Form I-901 and payment will be returned and you will need to file again. Be sure you send a payment for the exact amount.

4.K. What if my school/sponsor pays for me and I want to change schools/programs?

You may do this if the SEVIS I-901 fee paid on your behalf is greater than or equal to the fee for the new school or program. For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#) For your visa interview or, if [visa exempt](#), your entry into the United States, you will need to bring:

- Your receipt
- The Forms I-20 or DS-2019 for the school or program that paid for you
- The Form I-20 or DS-2019 for the school or program you will attend

Once you enter the United States, you will need to [request that SEVP transfer your fee payment information](#).

4.L. Are more payment options being considered?

Yes. SEVP is working on a number of additional payment alternatives. None are currently available. If you have specific suggestions or input, please mail or e-mail them to SEVP with *Fee Payment Alternatives* in the subject line:

By Mail

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
 P.O. Box 970020
 St. Louis, MO 63197-0020
 United States

E-mail:

Fmjfee.sevis.@dhs.gov

You will get a standard reply acknowledging your input but not a personalized response. However, your response will be sent to the team working on alternative arrangements.

New payment methods will be announced, as they are made available.

5. Receipt and payment verification related questions

5.A. Why do I need a receipt?

The federal statute relating to SEVIS, (8 USC §1372 (e)(5)), requires that a student or exchange visitor present proof of payment before being granted a visa or admission.

The SEVIS I-901 fee payment receipt, along with the electronic record in SEVIS and the I-901 payment system, serve as proof of payment. In most cases, people who need to verify that you have paid can do so electronically.

However, SEVP recommends that you retain a copy of your receipt. Having the receipt will make it easier to prove you have paid. There are cases where your current SEVIS ID number may be different from the number you paid on.

The receipt is also useful when you go to a visa interview or, if you are visa-exempt, apply for F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 status at the POE. The receipt is also your assurance that your payment and fee information were properly processed and posted.

5.B. What do I need to take to the embassy or consulate to prove I paid my SEVIS I-901 fee?

We highly recommend bringing your SEVIS I-901 fee receipt. While the embassy or consulate should be able to electronically verify your payment, having the receipt on hand proves that the payment was processed correctly and speeds the verification process.

If you paid the SEVIS I-901 fee using a Form I-20 or DS-2019 from a different school or exchange visitor program than the one you will attend, bring the Form I-20 or DS-2019 you used when paying the fee, in addition to the form for the school or program you will actually be attending. If there is no fee differential, the SEVIS I-901 fee you paid will be accepted. See the [Fee Amount Chart](#) for information on the amount of the fees.

5.C. When do I need a receipt?

Only those who are required to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee will need a receipt. See the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#), to determine if you need to pay the fee.

If you are required to pay the fee, you need to do so **before** your visa interview or filing an application for reinstatement, change of status, etc.

Keep your receipts along with other records pertaining to your nonimmigrant status. It will help to have a copy when:

- Applying for subsequent visas while continuing at the same school or exchange visitor program
- Applying for any work-related benefits
- Entering the United States
- Filing a petition or application with CIS

For more information, see the section [explaining why you need a receipt](#).

5.D. How long will it take for me to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee and get a receipt?

The length of time it takes to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee and get a receipt depends on how long it takes for:

- You to get your Form I-901 information and payment to SEVP
- SEVP to process the payment
- SEVP to deliver the receipt to the address you provided

There are three ways to get the Form I-901 information to SEVP: the Internet, the mail or courier.

- The Internet is fastest. It also speeds the processing step because the online form uses data validation rules to minimize the chances for error. If you file your Form I-901 online and pay with a [credit or debit card](#), you can print a receipt immediately. You will also receive a receipt printed on a Form I-797 in the mail.
- Mail service varies throughout the world, we suggest allowing at least 2 weeks for delivery.
- Courier services offer expedited delivery, but generally cost more than using the mail.

Much of the time involved depends on the mail. If you use regular mail, we suggest allowing at least two weeks for your payment to reach SEVP and two weeks for the receipt to be returned to you. If courier service is available, you can decrease this time by sending your payment by courier. You also have the option of paying \$35 for expedited delivery of your receipt. See the section on [How long does expedited delivery take?](#)

Forms and payments received by 10 am are processed that day. Those received after 10 am are processed the following business day. In general, payment information is posted to the SEVIS and State Department systems within three working days.

However, there are some issues that can delay processing or cause SEVP to return your payment. See the section, [How do I avoid problems paying the fee?](#), for tips on how to avoid payment and processing delays.

SEVP sends a printed receipt for every payment, regardless of how the payment is made. If you file on the Internet and pay by [credit or debit card](#), you will also be able to print a receipt for immediate use.

Receipts are sent within one business day of successfully processing your Form I-901 and payment. The receipt is sent by mail unless you chose to pay the \$35 fee for expedited delivery.

Allow at least two weeks for return delivery by mail. If you select expedited delivery, in most cases you will receive your receipt within 6 working days from the day SEVP receives your Form I-901 and payment. See the section, [How long does expedited delivery take?](#), for more information.

5.D.1. *How do I ensure the payment is made in time for me to go to the visa interview at the consulate?*

You are allowed to make an appointment for an interview before you have a receipt for your SEVIS I-901 fee payment. However, you need to ensure that there is a record of your payment before you go to your interview. There are two types of records for fee payments: electronic and paper. The electronic records are kept in three systems: SEVIS I-901 fee Payment System, SEVIS and the DoS consular database.

A paper receipt offers you the best assurance that an electronic record of your payment exists. We recommend bringing a paper receipt to your interview. However if you have not received one, a consular officer should be able to verify your payment information if it is in the SEVIS or DoS databases.

A customer service representative (1-785-330-1048 [United States Country Code 011]) can check the electronic records and verify that your payment has been posted. However, SEVP asks that you allow at least two weeks if you mail in your payment and at least one week if you send your application by courier, before checking on the status of your payment.

See the section on [processing time for receipts](#) for more information.

5.D.2. *Does the time from payment to receipt vary according to how the payment is made?*

Yes. See the section on [how long it takes to get a receipt](#) for more information.

5.D.3. *What is the fastest way to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee?*

Using the Internet to fill in the Form I-901 at www.fmjfee.com and paying by credit card is the fastest way to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. You can print a receipt immediately.

5.D.4. Does it take longer to get a receipt if I pay by check instead of by credit or debit card?

Yes. Because credit or debit card payments are made in conjunction with online filing, you can print a receipt immediately. With payment by check or money order, you must allow for the time needed to mail the payment and receive the receipt by return mail.

5.D.5. How long does expedited delivery take?

In most cases, you will receive an expedited delivery within 3 days. However, this does vary by country and how far you live from a major transportation center. Holidays, weekends and crossing the international dateline will also impact the delivery date. Currently, DHL is the courier SEVP uses for expedited delivery of receipts. The DHL website at <http://www.dhl-usa.com/TransitTimes/IntlTTime.asp> can give you the estimated delivery time for your country.

5.D.6. Is expedited delivery available to all countries?

No, there are some countries where DHL does not deliver. If you use the online Form I-901 at www.fmjfee.com, it will not accept input for a country where DHL does not deliver. You can also check the DHL website at www.dhl.com for countries of delivery.

If you pay for expedited delivery to a country where it is not available, your receipt will be sent through the regular mail system. You may then apply for a [refund](#) of the expedited delivery charge.

5.E. What if I need another copy of my receipt?

To have SEVP send you another copy of your receipt, call the Customer Service hotline. If you do not have access to the hotline, you can also e-mail or write SEVP. Put *Copy of Receipt* in the subject line and include your [SEVIS ID number](#), your original receipt number (if available), your full name and date of birth. Include the address where you would like to have the receipt sent.

See the section on [sources of help](#) for the hotline phone number and the addresses for SEVP.

5.E.1. Can a reprinted receipt be sent to a different address than the original receipt?

Yes. See the directions in the question, [What if I need another copy of my receipt?](#)

5.E.2. Can I reprint my electronic receipt?

No. You will not be able to return to the receipt page. Be sure your printer is ready before starting the online payment process. **Do not exit the receipt page until you have successfully printed the receipt.**

5.E.3. Will I get a receipt if my exchange visitor program sponsor pays for me?

You should get a copy of the receipt from your sponsor. If you do not receive a copy, contact your exchange visitor program sponsor directly. You may also contact SEVP for a copy of the receipt. See the directions in the question, [What if I need another copy of my receipt?](#)

5.E.4. Is there a charge for sending a copy of my receipt?

No. There is no charge for sending a copy of your receipt.

5.E.5. If I request a copy of my receipt, how soon will I receive it?

All copies of receipts are sent by mail. You cannot get expedited delivery for copies of receipts. In most cases, it takes about 2 weeks to receive a receipt through the mail. Allow more time if your local mail circumstances warrant.

5.E.6. Can receipts be e-mailed or faxed?

No. We do not e-mail or fax receipts.

5.F. What do I do if I do not get my receipt?

If you do not get a receipt within a reasonable amount of time (see the section on [how long it takes to get a receipt](#)), contact customer service to determine the status of your payment.

See the section on [sources of help](#) for the hotline phone number and the addresses for SEVP.

5.G. What happens if my receipt does not arrive and I need it for my visa interview or to enter the United States?

If you do not have a receipt in time for your interview or to apply for entry at the POE if you are visa exempt, it is possible for the consulates and the Ports of Entry to electronically verify your payment. See the section on [sources of help](#) for the hotline phone number and the addresses for SEVP. You can call, e-mail or send a letter to find out if your payment was received. If it was, you can go for your interview if you need a visa or to the POE if you are visa exempt.

If your payment was not received, it could be that it was delayed in transit. In this case, you may wish to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee online at www.fmjfee.com, pay by [credit or debit card](#) and print a receipt for immediate use. If both payments are processed, you can apply to have one [refunded](#).

5.G.1. When can I go to the consulate?

Most consulates require appointments for visa interviews. You must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before appearing for your interview. However, you can make an appointment for an interview before you receive your receipt. Be sure to

allow sufficient time for the fee payment to be processed before your interview date. See the section on [how long it takes to get a receipt](#).

5.G.2. *When can I file my application for change of status?*

You must pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before filing your application for change of status. While CIS will be able to electronically verify your payment, we recommend that you send a copy of the receipt for your SEVIS I-901 fee payment with your application. Therefore, it is best to file your application for change of status after you have a SEVIS I-901 fee receipt.

5.G.3. *When can I file my reinstatement?*

See the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#), to determine if you need to pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. If you do, pay the SEVIS I-901 fee before filing your application. Due to the time constraints for filing, SEVP recommends that you pay the SEVIS I-901 fee online at www.fmjfee.com, pay with a [credit or debit card](#) and print a receipt immediately. You may wish to send a copy of your receipt with your application.

5.H. *If I have presented the SEVIS I-901 fee receipt when I apply for my visa, do I need to present the receipt at the POE?*

In most cases, if you have a visa, you will not be asked to show your SEVIS I-901 fee receipt at the POE. However, we recommend that you hand carry your receipt in case the inspector has questions.

5.I. *Payment/Receipt Problems*

5.I.1. *What happens if my check does not clear the bank?*

If your check does not clear the bank, the check will be sent to the DHS Debt Management Center. The Debt Management Center will send you (or the person who wrote the check) instructions for clearing the debt. There will be a penalty charge of \$30.

Do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee again. Clear your debt through the Debt Management Center. Their phone number is (802) 288-7600. You will be allowed to go to your visa interview or, if [visa exempt](#), apply for entry at the POE before clearing your debt.

While nonpayment of the SEVIS I-901 fee is not a basis for removal in itself, you may be denied benefits later that are needed to maintain status, such as an extension, and then you may be subject to removal.

Call the Customer Service hotline for assistance or send an e-mail or letter with *Returned Payment* in the subject line if you need additional assistance. See the section on [sources of help](#) for the phone number and addresses.

5.I.2. What do I do if my payment and Form I-901 are returned to me?

If your payment and Form I-901 are returned, make the corrections noted. Send in a corrected Form I-901 with the appropriate fee.

5.J. Retaining the Receipt

5.J.1. Will I need my SEVIS I-901 fee receipt after I have my visa?

Yes. You may need the receipt to show that you paid the fee.

5.J.2. How long should I keep my SEVIS I-901 fee receipt?

Keep your SEVIS I-901 fee receipt until you complete your exchange visitor program (J-1) or receive your final degree (F-1, F-3, M-1 or M-3).

5.J.3. Will the consulate keep my original receipt?

No. Your receipt will be used only to verify SEVIS I-901 fee payment.

6. HOW ARE REFUNDS REQUESTED AND PROCESSED?

6.A. Who is eligible for a refund?

This chart has the most common refund scenarios. If your situation is not listed, you may submit a [refund request](#) with a full explanation of your situation and SEVP will make a case-by-case determination of whether or not to refund the fee.

Refund Eligibility

Am I eligible for a refund if:	Refund given
I decided not to come to the United States?	No
My visa or application was denied?	No
I was denied entry to the United States?	No
I paid for expedited delivery that was not available?	Yes, for the delivery fee only
I, or someone else, paid more than once for the same student or exchange visitor when only one fee was due?	Yes, for the duplicate payments
I paid in error a SEVIS I-901 fee and a fee was not required in my situation?	Yes
I withdrew my application for change of status or reinstatement?	No
The refund amount is less than \$30?	No

Am I eligible for a refund if:	Refund given
My institution paid the fee for an applicant who went elsewhere?	No
I paid too much?	No. SEVP rejects overpayments and returns them immediately so there is no need for a refund.
I paid for expedited delivery on a duplicate payment?	No
Someone used my credit or debit card or checking account fraudulently?	Yes

6.B. Who can request a refund?

Only the student or exchange visitor who paid the fee or for whom the fee was paid can request a refund except in cases of suspected fraud. If the payment was made by check or [credit or debit card](#), the refund will be paid to the person or institution who made the payment. Fees paid by money order will be refunded to the student or exchange visitor.

6.C. How do I request a refund?

Mail or e-mail your refund request to SEVP. The e-mail address is fmjfee.SEVIS@DHS.gov. The mailing address is:

SEVIS I-901 Fee Refunds
 800 K Street NW, Suite 1000
 Washington, DC 20536
 United States

Your request must include:

- *SEVIS I-901 Fee Refund* in the subject line if you are using e-mail
- Your name and [SEVIS ID number](#) as it appears on your receipt(s)
- The reason for the refund (see the [Refund Chart](#))
- A mailing address, phone number or e-mail address where you can be contacted if more information is required
- If you are requesting a refund because the SEVIS I-901 fee was paid more than once, indicate which payment should be refunded.
- If you are requesting a refund due to fraudulent use of your credit or debit card or checking account, describe the circumstances and provide as much information as possible. Include the correspondence with your bank and any policy reports that you filed.

6.D. Can I get a refund if I paid twice?

Yes, unless you are obligated to pay more than one SEVIS I-901 fee (see [Who Pays the Fee?](#)). However, you will not receive a refund for any expedited delivery charges where the delivery was sent.

6.E. Can I get a refund if I paid by mistake?

You may get a refund if:

- You mistakenly paid more than once
- You do not owe the fee because you are participating in a fee exempt exchange visitor program

However, if you paid the SEVIS I-901 fee and then decided not to apply for F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 status, you will not get a refund.

If you sent in a payment for the SEVIS I-901 fee, but did not attach a Form I-901 or do not have a Form I-20 or DS-2019; SEVP will return your payment. So there will be no need to apply for a refund in these cases.

6.F. Can I get a refund if I changed my mind?

No. You should not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee if you have not made the decision to come to the United States as a student or exchange program visitor. If you pay for one educational or exchange visitor program and decide to participate in a different program, you may not need to pay a second fee. For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#)

6.G. What if two schools or sponsors pay for me? Can I get one fee refunded?

If more than one party pays your SEVIS I-901 fee and only one fee is owed, you can get the excess fees refunded.

6.H. Where are refunds sent?

Where the refund is sent depends on who paid the fee. If a third party used a check, [credit or debit card](#) to pay the fee, the refund goes to the third party. Otherwise, the refund is sent to the student or exchange visitor's home address as reported in SEVIS.

Payments made by check or money order will be refunded by a DHS check. Payments by [credit or debit card](#) will be in the form of a credit to the account.

6.I. If my institution paid the SEVIS I-901 fee for a student or exchange visitor who decides not to come or who enrolls in a different school or program, can my institution request a refund?

No. Third party payments are made on the behalf of the student or exchange visitor. Only the student or exchange visitor can request a refund.

While SEVP will make refunds when a SEVIS I-901 fee is paid twice, **only the student or exchange visitor may request a refund**. However, if the student or exchange visitor does request a refund and your institution paid the fee, the refund will be sent to your institution, not to the student or exchange visitor.

SEVP will not refund the SEVIS I-901 fee in cases where a student or exchange visitor decides not to come to the United States or is denied a visa.

7. HOW CAN SEVIS I-901 FEE PAID ON ONE SEVIS ID BE MOVED TO ANOTHER SEVIS ID?

7.A. What are the basic rules for applying a SEVIS I-901 fee payment from one [SEVIS ID number](#) to another?

The basic rules for moving a SEVIS I-901 fee payment between [SEVIS ID numbers](#) are:

- The SEVIS I-901 fee must be moved between SEVIS ID numbers **for the same individual**
- An additional SEVIS I-901 fee is **not** required (For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#))
- The SEVIS I-901 fee amount for the new school or program must be less than or equal to the SEVIS I-901 fee already paid (see the [Fee Amount Chart](#))
- Only the student or exchange visitor may request the move

Follow the directions for [requesting that SEVP move your fee payment](#).

7.B. What do I do if I paid on one [SEVIS ID number](#) and now want to go to a different school or participate in a different exchange visitor program?

If you have not received a visa or if you are [visa exempt](#) and have not applied for nonimmigrant status at the POE, you can apply the SEVIS I-901 fee that you already paid to another Form I-20 or DS-2019 if you meet the [basic rules for reapplying fees](#).

Follow the directions for [requesting that SEVP move your fee payment](#).

7.C. An exchange visitor program sponsor or other third party paid my SEVIS I-901 fee and now I want to participate in a different program? Can I transfer my SEVIS I-901 fee?

Yes, you may transfer the fee if you have not received a visa or if you are [visa exempt](#) and have not applied for nonimmigrant status at the POE and you meet the [basic rules for transferring fees](#). Follow the directions for [requesting that SEVP move your fee payment information](#).

7.D. How do I ask SEVP to transfer the SEVIS I-901 fee payment information from one [SEVIS ID number](#) to another?

If you want to transfer the SEVIS I-901 fee payment information from one [SEVIS ID number](#) to another, you need to [mail or e-mail](#) SEVP. SEVP will consider your request and determine if the fee can be transferred. See the section on the [basic rules for transferring fees](#).

Put *Fee Transfer* in the subject line of your request. Give us your name, date of birth, the [SEVIS ID number](#) that you originally paid on and the [SEVIS ID number](#) you want to transfer the payment to. Explain why the fee needs to be transferred. It will help speed your request if you include a copy of your original receipt or your receipt number. Include information on how to contact you if there are any questions.

SEVP will review your request and determine if the fee can be transferred. However, SEVP is currently developing an automated process for transferring fee payment information and recording the transfers in SEVIS. In the meantime, we will review requests and maintain a manual record of the transfers.

In the interim, keep a copy of your SEVIS I-901 fee receipt, the original Form I-20 or DS-2019 used to pay it and your fee transfer request. When you apply for any benefit where the SEVIS I-901 fee will be verified, we suggest you provide a copy of this documentation.

8. HOW DO I GET HELP WITH SEVIS I-901 FEE ISSUES?

8.A. Where can I get help if I am having a problem with the SEVIS I-901 fee payment process?

There are four major sources of help with fee payment issues.

Source of Assistance	Type of Assistance Available
SEVP Website www.ice.gov/sevis/i901 Available anytime	Fact sheets and FAQ section for fee payment issues Downloadable PDF version of Form I-901
Customer Service Hotline 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011) Available from 8 am to 6 pm Central time (GMT – 6) Monday through Friday	General questions about fee payment issues Questions about a specific Form I-901 and the status of the payment
Your school or exchange visitor program sponsor	General fee payment questions Questions about your specific program Questions about whether or not a fee charged by a school or exchange visitor program

	<p>sponsor is the official SEVIS I-901 fee Your school or sponsor may have other resources</p>
<p>E-Mail to fmjfee.SEVIS@DHS.gov OR Mail to: SEVP ATTN: SEVIS I-901 fee CRU 800 K Street NW Suite 1000 Washington, DC 20536 United States</p>	<p>Use this only when you have a question that cannot be answered by checking the website or calling the Customer Service Hotline</p> <p>All questions will be answered as quickly as possible</p> <p>You can expedite the processing of your answer by clearly indicating the subject of your question so your query can be routed to the appropriate person</p>

8.B. Can I get help with a specific payment problem?

Yes. See the [sources of help](#) chart. It explains the different ways to get help. In most cases, the best way to get help with a specific problem is to call the Customer Service Hotline at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011).

8.C. Is help available in languages other than English?

The customer service hotline has both Spanish and English speaking operators. Help in other languages is not currently available.

8.D. What if I need help with the initial SEVIS I-901 fee payment and filing process?

The SEVP website at www.ice.gov/sevis/i901 has extensive help available. You can also call the Customer Service Hotline at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011). If you have questions pertaining to your specific school or exchange visitor program, contact the person listed on your Form I-20 or DS-2019.

8.E. What if I need help with verifying the status of my SEVIS I-901 fee payment?

You can call Customer Service at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011) for help verifying the status of your SEVIS I-901 fee payment. If you cannot call, you can mail or e-mail your questions to SEVP. Be sure you put *SEVIS Fee Status* in the subject line. See the section on [sources of help](#) for the customer service phone number and the addresses for SEVP.

8.F. What if I need help determining if I am required to pay the fee?

See the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#) If you have additional questions, contact the person listed on your Form I-20 or DS-2019.

9. HOW ARE FEE PAYMENT PROBLEMS RESOLVED?

9.A. What if I cannot make a full payment?

SEVP cannot accept partial payments of the SEVIS I-901 fee. A third party can pay on your behalf.

9.B. How will I know if my payment or Form I-901 is not accepted?

If your SEVIS I-901 fee payment or Form I-901 is rejected, SEVP will send you a notice explaining the reasons for the rejection. See the section [on what to do if your payment or form was returned](#) for information on how to resolve the problem.

9.C. What if my payment or Form I-901 was returned, should I repay?

If you receive a receipt returning your payment and Form I-901, you need to file a new Form I-901 and pay the SEVIS I-901 fee again. Be sure to correct the errors noted on the return receipt. For more information, see the [Payment Checklist](#).

If you did not get a notice rejecting your payment or Form I-901, but have reason to believe your payment was not processed, check with the Customer Service Hotline at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011) before you repay the SEVIS I-901 fee. Customer service will be able to tell you if your Form I-901 and fee payment were returned and the reasons why.

If your financial institution declines to honor your check (i.e. your check bounces), **do not pay the SEVIS I-901 fee again**. See the section on [returned checks](#) for the correct process to repay the fee.

9.D. What is the mechanism for resolving problem cases?

If you have problems, consult the SEVP website at www.ice.gov/sevis/i901 for information on ways to resolve common problems. You can also contact SEVP directly as explained in the section on [sources of help](#).

9.E. What if I paid the SEVIS I-901 fee but SEVP does not have a record of the payment?

Be sure you have allowed [sufficient time](#) for the fee payment to reach SEVP. If SEVP rejects a payment you will receive a notice explaining the reasons for the rejection. The Customer Service Hotline at 1-785-330-1048 (United States Country Code 011) can also check the status of your payment.

If you still have an issue with the payment, you can ask SEVP to investigate. Write to SEVP via [mail or e-mail](#). Put *SEVIS I-901 fee Inquiry* in the subject line. Give your name, [SEVIS ID number](#) and explain the circumstances. Include copies of any evidence of payment. SEVP will investigate and determine if the SEVIS I-901 fee is due and has been paid.

However, if you need a record of SEVIS I-901 fee payment in order to apply for a visa, admission or a benefit, you may chose to (re)pay the SEVIS I-901 fee. You can then apply for a [refund](#) of the duplicate fee.

9.F. What if I paid a \$35 fee and now I want to participate in an exchange visitor program that costs \$180?

You will need to pay the \$180 SEVIS I-901 fee. If you complete one exchange visitor program and then start another, you must pay a new SEVIS I-901 fee. If you pay the SEVIS I-901 fee for one exchange visitor program and then decide to participate in another program instead, you can [transfer](#) the fee only when the fee for the new program is less than or equal to the fee you already paid.

For more information, see the section, [Do I pay the fee?](#), the [Fee Amount Chart](#) and the section on [transferring fees](#).

9.G. How do I clear my debt if my check bounces or is rejected by my bank?

You will need to contact the DHS Debt Management Center to clear your debt. See the section on [returned checks](#) for the correct process.

9.H. What does a student or exchange visitor do if SEVIS shows that their payment status is *Cancelled*?

If your SEVIS record shows that your payment status is *Cancelled*, this means that your check was bounced or was rejected by your bank. See the section on [returned checks](#) for the correct process to repay the fee.

10. GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Term or Acronym	Definition
ARO	Alternate Responsible Officer. A person designated by a Department of State authorized exchange visitor program sponsor to support the Responsible Officer and maintain SEVIS data.
Authorized overseas study	Overseas study authorized by a Primary/Designated School Official that contributes to completion of your program of study. This includes graduate research and formal classes or programs.
Continuing exchange visitor	For purposes of nonimmigrant status, a continuing exchange visitor is one who maintains status in a single program.
Continuing student	For purposes of nonimmigrant status, a continuing student is one who has not completed, or terminated, a program of study and has maintained status. Continuing students may, under certain circumstances, transfer schools while continuing to maintain status. F-1 and F-3 students may also change their level of study while continuing to maintain status.
DHS	Department of Homeland Security www.dhs.gov
DoS	Department of State www.state.gov
DSO	Designated School Official. The person designated by a SEVP approved school to support the Principal Designated School Official and maintain SEVIS records.
Exchange visitor program sponsor	The designated sponsor of a Department of State approved exchange visitor program. http://exchanges.state.gov/education/jexchanges/
F-1	Nonimmigrant status conferred on students attending SEVP approved academic institutions and language training programs who meet the requirements outlined in 8 CFR 214.2(f)(1).
F-2	Nonimmigrant status conferred on the spouse or minor child of an F-1 or F-3 student.
F-3	Border commuter students in academic institutions and language training programs (the 8 CFR provisions for commuter students are under development).
Form DS-2019	Form DS-2019, Certificate of Eligibility for Exchange Visitor (J-1) Status, created by DoS approved exchange visitor program.
Form I-20	Form I-20, Certificate of Eligibility for Nonimmigrant Student Status, created by SEVP approved schools.
ICE	Immigration and Customs Enforcement www.ice.gov

Term or Acronym	Definition
J-1	Nonimmigrant status conferred on exchange visitors participating in DoS approved exchange visitor programs who meet the requirements outlined in 8 CFR 214.2(j)(1)
J-2	Nonimmigrant status conferred on the spouse or minor child of an J-2 student
M-1	Nonimmigrant status conferred on students attending SEVP approved vocational or other nonacademic institutions who meet the requirements outlined in 8 CFR 214.2(m)(1)
M-2	Nonimmigrant status conferred on the spouse or minor child of an M-1 student
M-3	Border commuter students in vocational training programs or other nonacademic institutions (the 8 CFR provisions for commuter students are under development)
P/DSO	Either a PDSO or a DSO.
Passport	An official document from a person's country of citizenship that attests to their identity and status as a citizen.
PDF	Adobe Acrobat standard file format http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html
PDSO	Primary Designated School Official. The person designated by a SEVP approved school to have primary responsibility for students in that program and maintaining SEVIS records.
POE	Port-of-Entry. The term port of entry means a port or place designated by DHS at which a person may apply for admission into the United States, including international airports, seaports and land ports of entry.
Receipt for SEVIS I-901 fee	The I-797 or Internet generated receipt given to student or exchange visitor upon payment of the SEVIS I-901 fee.
RO	Responsible Officer. The person designated by a Department of State authorized exchange visitor program sponsor to have primary responsibility for exchange visitors in that program and maintaining SEVIS records.
School	A SEVP approved academic or vocational institution or language training school.
SEVIS	Student and Exchange Visitor Information System www.ice.gov/sevis
<u>SEVIS ID number</u>	The unique identifying number assigned to a student or exchange visitor within SEVIS that appears on the Form I-20 or DS-2019.

Term or Acronym	Definition
SEVP	Student and Exchange Visitor Program www.ice.gov/sevis
USCIS	U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Service www.uscis.gov
Visa	<p>If you are a citizen of a foreign country, in most cases you'll need a visa to apply to enter the United States.</p> <p>A visa doesn't permit entry to the United States. A visa simply indicates that a U.S. consular officer at an American embassy or consulate reviewed your application and determined that you are eligible to enter the country for a specific purpose. Consular affairs are the responsibility of the DoS.</p> <p>A visa allows you to travel to the United States as far as the POE. Only the immigration officer has the authority to permit you to enter the United States. (For more information on what to expect at the POE see http://www.ice.gov/doclib/pi/news/newsreleases/articles/POEFactSheetUpdate_063004.pdf)</p> <p>There are two categories of U.S. visas: immigrant and nonimmigrant.</p> <p>Immigrant visas are for people who intend to live permanently in the U.S. Nonimmigrant visas are for people with permanent residence outside the U.S. but who wish to be in the U.S. on a temporary basis – for tourism, business, temporary work, study, or medical treatment. For additional information see the DoS website at http://www.unitedstatesvisas.gov/whatis/index.html</p>
Visa exempt	Citizens of Canada or Bermuda or residents of certain other islands described in 8 CFR 212.1a, do not need a visa. These applicants for F-1, F-3, M-1, M-3 or J-1 nonimmigrant status may apply at the Port-of-Entry.

SCREEN SHOTS FROM THE FMJFEE WEBSITE

10.A. Payment Coupon



**U.S. Immigration
and Customs
Enforcement**



Student and Exchange Visitor Program: SEVIS I-901 Fee OMB 1653-0034

[Help](#)

[SEVP Main Page](#)

Call DHS:
1-785-330-1043
(US Country Code 011)

Payment Coupon

Control Number: 020520200460051

Name

Student/EV First Name	ANTHONY
Student/EV Middle Name	
Student/EV Last Name	BLAIR

Address

Street Address 1	10 DOWNING STREET
Street Address 2	
Apt #	
City	LONDON
State (US addresses only)	
Country	ENGLAND
Zip/Postal Code	Q3Q3Q3

Payment Information

I-901 Application Fee	\$100.00
Expedited Delivery Fee	\$30.00
Total Amount Due	\$130.00
SEVIS Identification Number	N9999999999

Instructions

Print this page and mail it along with your check to the following address. Be sure to keep a copy for your records.

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
P.O. BOX 970020
St. Louis, MO 63197-0020

Or, Courier the I-901 payment coupon and payment to:

I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee
1005 Convention Plaza
St. Louis, MO 63101

Remember to print out your I-901 payment coupon and include it with your payment.

Terms and Conditions

Payment must be made by international money order or foreign draft drawn on a financial institution in the U.S. and payable in U.S. currency. Many foreign banks are able to issue checks or money orders drawn on a U.S. bank. Accordingly, payment may be made with checks from banks chartered or operated in the U.S., from foreign subsidiaries of U.S. banks, or from foreign banks that have an arrangement with a U.S. bank to issue a check, money order, or foreign draft that is drawn on a U.S. bank.

All checks and money orders must be made payable to the "I-901 Student/Exchange Visitor Processing Fee."

Checks are accepted subject to collection. A charge of \$30.00 will be imposed if a check for payment of a fee is not honored by the bank on which it is drawn.

Write the name of the student or exchange visitor and the SEVIS identification number on the check.

The fee must be submitted in the exact amount. Failure to send in the payment coupon along with the correct payment will result in the return of this coupon to you and additional delays in processing. Fees will not be refunded.

Print This Page
Return to the SEVP Main Site
Submit Another I-901 Application

